CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GARFIELD
TOWN BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, July 14, 2015 at 6:00pm
Garfield Township Hall
3848 Veterans Drive
Traverse City, Ml 49684
Ph: (231) 941-1620
AGENDA

ORDER OF BUSINESS -
Call meeting to order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll call of Board Members

1. Public Comment

Public Comment Guidelines:

Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of The Township Board, which is required
to be open to the public under the provision of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.
(MCLA 15.261, et.seq.) Public Comment shall be carried out in accordance with the following
Board Rules and Procedures: a.) any person wishing to address the Board is requested to
state his or her name and address. b.) No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on
the same matter, excluding time needed to answer Township Board Member's questions.
Where constrained by available time the Chairperson may limit the amount of time each person
will be allowed to speak to (3) minutes. 1.) The Chairperson may at his or her own discretion,
extend the amount of time any person is allowed to speak. 2.) Whenever a Group wishes to
address a Committee, the Chairperson may require that the Group designate a spokesperson;
the Chairperson shall control the amount of time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak
when constrained by available time.

2. Review and approval of the Agenda - Conflict of Interest

3. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the Consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial
items together to be dealt with in one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the
Board, staff or the public may ask that any item on the Consent Calendar be removed there
from and placed elsewhere on the Agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be
automatically respected. If any item is not removed from the Consent Calendar, the action
noted in parentheses on the Agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the Consent
Calendar.

a. Minutes — June 23, 2015 Special Meeting (Recommend Approval)

Minutes — June 23, 2015 Regular Meeting (Recommend Approval)



b.

Bills -

General Fund $ 409,775.87
(Recommend Approval)

Gourdie-Fraser

Developer's Escrow Fund $ 1,500.00
Utility Receiving Fund 64,261.50
Total $ 65,761.50

(Recommend Approval)
MTT Update (Receive and File)
Acceptance of facilities for Zimmerman Road Water Main Extension (Recommend Approval)
2014 Audit Report (Recommend Approval)

Ordinance No. 69, Charter Township of Garfield Fire Prevention Ordinance. Introduce and
schedule for Public Hearing on July 28, 2015. (Recommend Approval)

PD 2015-50 - Brookside Commons Planned Unit Development — Major Amendment
SUP 2009-01-A. Introduce and schedule for Public Hearing on August 11, 2015.
(Recommend Approval)

. Correspondence

a
b
c.
d.
e
f.

. Reports

Construction Report

' Sheriff's Department Report

County Commissioner's Report
Treasurer's Report
Clerk’s Report

Supervisor's Report

Unfinished Business

a.

Consideration of Purchase Agreement for property for water tower for NW Storage Project

New Business

a.

b.

Presentation by John Sych — Joint Housing Task Force Report

Consideration of Community-Wide Proclamation for Housing

. Public Comment

. Other Business




10. Adjournment

Lanie McManus, Clerk

The Garfield Township Board will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for hearing
impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities upon the
provision of reasonable advance notice o the Garfield Township Board. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary
aids or services should contact the Garfield Township Board by wriling or calling Lanie McManus, Clerk, Ph: (231) 941-
1620, or TDD #922-4412,



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GARFIELD
SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING
June 23, 2015

Chuck Korn, Township Supervisor, called the Town Board Meeting to order on June 23,
2015 at 5:00 p.m. at the Boardman Lake Apartments Community Room, at 2790
Boardman Lake Drive, Traverse City, Michigan.

Roll call of Board Members

Present: Jeane Blood Law, Kit Wilson, Denise Schmuckal, Bob Featherstone, and
Chuck Korn

1. Business to Come Before the Board

a. Tour of Boardman Lake Apartments
The Board toured the renovated buildings.

2. Public Comment
The Board thanked Craig Patterson for arranging the tour.

3. Adjournment (4:59)

The meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m.

Chuck Korn, Supervisor Lanie McManus, Clerk
Charter Township of Garfield Charter Township of Garfield
3848 Veterans Drive 3848 Veterans Drive

Traverse City, Ml 49686 Traverse City, Ml 49686
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GARFIELD
TOWN BOARD MEETING
June 23, 2015

Chuck Korn called the Town Board Meeting to order on June 23, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at
the Garfield Township Hall, 3848 Veterans Drive, Traverse City, Michigan.

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll call of Board Members

Present: Bob Featherstone, Molly Agostinelli, Kit Wilson, Denise Schmuckal, Jeane
Blood Law, and Chuck Korn

Absent and Excused: Lanie McManus

1.

Public Comment (6:00)
None

Review and Approval of the Agenda - Conflict of Interest (6:01)
Wilson moved and Schmuckal seconded to approve the agenda as presented.

Yeas: Wilson, Schmuckal, Agostinelli, Featherstone, Blood Law, Korn
Nays: None

Consent Calendar (6:03)

a. Minutes
June 9, 2015
(Recommend Approval)

b. Bills
General Fund $328,629.44

(Recommend Approval)

c. Acceptance of Hammond Commerce Center sewer and water main
extensions on Industry Drive and turn over to County DPW for operation
and maintenance. (Recommend Approval)

d. Application for Progress Payment #4 (Final Payment) for Team Elmers for
Zimmerman Road Watermain Extension in the amount of $36,620.10.

(Recommend Approval)

Agostinelli moved and Schmuckal seconded to adopt the consent calendar as
presented.

Yeas: Agostinelli, Schmuckal, Blood Law, Wilson, Featherstone, Korn
Nays: None

3. a.



Charter Township of Garfield Township Board Meeting June 23, 2015

4. Correspondence (6:03)

One letter was received from the builder regarding the delay in the Emergency
Exit canopy construction at the Township Hall.

5. Reports

a.

Construction Report (6:19)

Jennifer Hodges submitted a report in writing which indicated that Gourdie-Fraser
is busy with several projects including the new water service project for the
Northwest Service District, pump stations #3, #1, and #9, and the LaFranier
Road Project. Plan reviews have also been completed on Buffalo Ridge and
Chelsea Park.

. GT Metro Fire Report (6:03)

Lt. Terry Flynn reported on several fires in the area including Bortz Health Care
and the Grand Traverse Resort. The amount of calls is about the same as last
year at this time and staffing seems to be working well. The budget will be
reviewed soon and smoke alarms are still being offered to those who do not have
one.

. County Commissioner’s Report (6:10)

County Commissioner Alisa Kroupa said that the CPO contract has been settled.
She has been attending project manager meetings for the Boardman Dam and all
invoices for the project are now being reviewed by the County Commissioners.
Commissioners are also getting an outside opinion and financial analysis of the
county finances. Kroupa said that the Commission has hired a consultant for the
Budgeting for Outcomes process. The Joint Housing Task Force process is finished.
There is a citizen’s group which may want to help to fund the Easling Pool.

. Building Committee Report (6:20)

Agostinelli said she spoke with Bill Mouser and they will review several Township
Hall projects and bring them back to the Board for discussion.

. Treasurer’s Report (6:24)

Blood Law gave a review of the yard waste pass program and said that the
program dates should be moved to mid-May next year. There are already dates
for the fall clean-up program.

Supervisor’s Report (6:50)

Korn said that he met with Brian Thurston regarding the water system expansion.
He attended court-ordered mediation with a cannabis shop located on South
Airport Road and may need to go to court. He attended a seminar on the Effects
of Global Warming on the local Environment and as part of the Personnel
Committee, he also attended a seminar on “why people leave” their jobs. He also
mentioned attending the housing summit last week.



Charter Township of Garfield Township Board Meeting June 23, 2015

6. Unfinished Business (6:32)

a. Public Hearing — Consideration of Resolution #2015-08-T(c), a Tentative
Special Assessment Roll for Forestlane Subdivision Roads Special
Assessment District (6:32)

Korn explained that this action is the final step in establishing a Special
Assessment District for Forestlane Subdivision.

Korn opened the Public Hearing at 6:33pm.

Charlotte Case inquired about a guarantee on the road. Korn explained the
Road Commission established standards for road building and added that there
was usually a one year warranty.

Frank Greenlaw asked about payment without interest.

Korn closed the Public Hearing at 6:40pm. He stated that the project will likely
begin sometime this summer.

Schmuckal moved and Blood Law seconded to adopt Resolution #2015-08-T(c),
a Tentative Special Assessment Roll for Forestlane Subdivision Roads Special
Assessment District.

Yeas: Schmuckal, Blood Law, Wilson, Agostinelli, Featherstone, Korn
Nays: None

b. Consideration of Adoption of FOIA Procedures and Guidelines (6:42)
Changes have been made as requested which delete language pertaining
to oral requests. Oral requests for information will not formally be considered a

FOIA Request.

Schmuckal moved and Wilson seconded to adopt the Charter Township of
Garfield FOIA Procedures and Guidelines.

Yeas: Schmuckal, Wilson, Featherstone, Blood Law, Agostinelli, Korn
Nays: None

c. Consideration of the naming of a new road in Sec. 06, T27N-R11W, Grand
Traverse County Ml of “Windy Acres Lane” (6:44)

Schmuckal moved and Wilson seconded to accept the name “Windy Acres Lane”
for a private road name in Grand Traverse County.

Yeas: Schmuckal, Wilson, Featherstone, Agostinelli, Blood Law, Korn
Nays: None



Charter Township of Garfield Township Board Meeting June 23, 2015

d. Update on NW Water Storage Project (6:45)
i. Awarding the bid for the Cedar Run/Harris Road Watermain Extension
Jennifer Hodges said that there were two bids for the project and she
recommends that the Township hire the low bidder, Team Elmer’s, for a

cost of $1,895,340.

Featherstone moved and Blood Law seconded to accept the bid from
Team Elmer’s for the Cedar Run/Harris Road Watermain Extension for
$1,895,340.

Yeas: Featherstone, Blood Law, Schmuckal, Agostinelli, Wilson, Korn
Nays: None

ii. Approval of Survey for water tower
Hodges said that the water tower survey had been completed by a
professional surveyor.

7. New Business (6:52)

a. Consideration of Resolution 2015-09-T, a resolution to adopt the Annual
Exemption Option as set forth in 2011 Public Act 152, the Publicly Funded
Health Insurance Contribution Act (6:52)

Korn said that this needs to be passed by the Board yearly so that the Township
can be exempted from P.A. 152. He added that there was a 3% increase in
insurance costs this year.

Schmuckal moved and Wilson seconded to adopt Resolution 2015-09-T,
a resolution to adopt the Annual Exemption Option as set forth in 2011 Public Act
152, the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution Act.

Yeas: Schmuckal, Wilson, Agostinelli, Featherstone, Blood Law, Korn
Nays: None

b. Consideration of bids for striping and sealcoating of Town Hall Parking Lot
(6:53)
Mouser reviewed the bids with Board members and said that ACE Seal Right
was the lowest bidder. Board members discussed the bids and reviewed what
was included in each bid.

Agostinelli moved and Blood Law seconded to hire Black Magic for seal
coating and striping of the Town Hall parking lot citing that it was the most
inclusive bid.

Yeas: Agostinelli, Blood Law, Featherstone, Wilson, Schmuckal, Korn
Nays: None



Charter Township of Garfield Township Board Meeting June 23, 2015

8. Public Comment (7:12)
Cindy Smith of Buckhorn Drive expressed displeasure with her yard repair after the

Zimmerman Road construction was completed. She passed out pictures to Board
members and Korn said that he would talk with Team Elmer’s.

Dale Popa, of Zimmerman Road also has the same issue on his property.

Jennifer Hodges said that she is maintaining a list of residents with complaints and is
withholding payment from Team Elmers until the yards are restored properly.
Elmer’s is aware of the problem and must maintain a one year warranty for the
germination of grass seed that was used per the permit conditions.

9. Other Business (7:19)

10. Adjournment
Agostinelli moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:19 p.m.

Chuck Korn, Supervisor Lanie McManus, Clerk
Charter Township of Garfield Charter Township of Garfield
3848 Veterans Drive 3848 Veterans Drive
Traverse City, Ml 49686 Traverse City, Ml 49686
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3. b.

Q Gourdie-Fraser

Municipal | Development | Transportation

PH 231.946.5874
FAX 231.946.3703

www.gfa.tc
June 30, 2015
SUMMARY OF JUNE BILLINGS FOR
APPROVAL FROM GARFIELD TOWNSHIP
I. Developer's Escrow Fund
1. Engineering services for plan review and construction services.
Buffalo Ridge Center Sewer & Water Extension
Project# 14370 Invoice No. 1437003 1,500.00

1. Total 1,500.00

Il. Utility Receiving Fund

1. Engineering, survey and consiruction consulting services for

Zimmerman Road Watermain Extension

Project# 14283 Invoice No. 1428306 3,268.00
2. Engineering, survey and construction consulting services for

Crown Temporary Water Booster Station

Project# 14416 Invoice No. 1441602 6,888.50
3. Survey services for

NW Infrastructure Improvements - Survey Services

Project# 14417 Invoice No. 1441703 1,575.00
4. Engineering services for

Coordination of Utilities w/GT County Road Commission

Project# 15029C  Invoice No.150293118 Lafranier Road 460.00
5. Engineering and construction services for watermain extension.

Harris and Cedar Run Road

Project# 15062 Invoice No. 1506204 44,790.00
6. Engineering and construction services to upgrade existing pumping station.

Pump Station #3 Upgrades

Project# 15107 Invoice No. 1510702 7,280.00

Il. Total 64,261.50

GRAND TOTAL $65,761.50

123 W. Front Street, Traverse City, Ml 49684
[S————a ]



@ Gourdie-Fraser
Invoice ] Gourdie-Fraser, Inc. . S =
123 West Front Street, PO Box 927
Traverse City, Ml 49685-0927
Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634

VISA/IMASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt
AIR email: melanie@gfa.tc

MR CHUCK KORN

CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD

3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, MI 48684 June 30, 2015
Project No: 14370
Invoice No: 1437003

Re: Buffalo Ridge Center Sewer and Waler Exiension
Services Performed: Plan review, construction observalion, inspection and project lurnover for the waler main and sewer

extension.
Project Location: Buffalo Ridge Center located off market Place Circle on M-37, Traverse Cily, Garfield Township. Grand

Traverse County, Michigan.

Professional Services from May 2, 2015 to June 27, 2015

Fee

Percent Previous Fee Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Plan Review 1,000.00 100.00 1.000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Construclion 1,500.00 100.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00
Observation/Inspection
Project Turnover 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tolal Fee 3,000.00 2,500.00 1,000.00 1,500.00

Total Fee 1,500.00

Total this Invoice $1,500.00




o .
ga Gourdie-Fras
Invoice Gourdie-Fraser, Inc. o e s s i
123 West Froni Street, PO Box 927
Traverse City, Ml 496B85-0927
Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634
VISA/IMASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt
AIR email: melanie@gfa.lc

MR CHUCK KORN
CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD
3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, Ml 49684 June 30, 2015
Project No: 14283
Invoice No: 1428306

Re: Zimmerman Road Watermain Extension

Services Performed: Engineering, survey and construction services for design. site inspections, final plans, construction
administration and close out for the exlension of the exisling 16" walermain along Zimmerman Road that currently terminates
at Panorama Lane and extend to the north side of North Long Lake Road.

Professional Services from May 24, 2015 to June 27, 2015

Fee

Percent Previous Fee  Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Preliminary Design 16,000.00 100.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 6.00
Final Design 22,000.00 100.00 22,000.00 22,000.00 0.00
Coordination / Negotiations 3,000.00 100.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Construction Staking 3.200.00 52.00 1.664.00 1.664.00 0.00
Construction Observation 43.000.00 67.00 28,810.00 25,542.00 3,268.00
Construction Administration 15,000.00 100.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00
Close Out 3.000.00 100.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Total Fee 105,200.00 89,474.00 86.206.00 3,268.00

Total Fee 3,268.00

Total this Invoice $3,268.00




g% Gourdie-F

Traverse City, Ml 49685-0927
Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634
VISA/IMASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt
AIR email: melanie@gfa.tc

MR CHUCK KORN
CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD
3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684 June 30, 2015
Project No: 14416
Invoice No: 1441602

Re: Crown Temporary Water Booster Stalion

Services Performed: Engineering, survey and construction services for design, lopographic survey, bidding, conslruction
administration & observation and close oul services of a new lemparary waler booster stalion to service the existing Crown
development.

Project Location: Garfield Township, Grand Traverse Counly, Michigan.

Professional Services from January 1, 2015 to June 27, 2015

Fec
Percent Previous Fee Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Preliminary Design 5.,500.00 100.00 5,500.00 5,500,00 0.00
Final Design 9,000.00 100.00 9,000.00 2.111.50 6,888.50
Bidding 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Administration 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Consltruction Observation 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Close Out 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tolal Fee 25.500.00 14,500.00 7.611.50 6,888.50
Total Fee 6,888.50
Total this Invoice $6,888.50

rase

Invoice Gourdie-Fraser, Inc. Ty
| 123 West Front Street, PO Box 927

r




9%1 Gourdie-Fraser

e e

E Gourdie-Fraser, Inc.

| 123 West Front Street, PO Box 927
Traverse City, Ml 49685-0927

Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634

VISA/MASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt
A/R email: melanie@gfa.tc

MR CHUCK KORN

CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD

3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, M| 49684 June 30, 2015
Project No; 14417
Invoice No: 1441703

Re: NW Infrastruclure Improvemenits - Survey Services

Services Performed; Research to define any existing easements and right of way. Topographic survey of roads, define
privale properties and 10 acre parcel lor tank/booster station. Limits shall be from row o row (+10’) including homes
(address/finish floor elevations). Drall proposed easements and project limits for design use.

Project Location: Zimmerman/Panorama Lane, N. Long Lake Road/Zimmerman Intersection, N. Long Lake from Woda
Develapment, N. Zimmerman Road extension within Roberlson property to Harrison Road and Cedar Run Road 1o
Grayhawk. Garfield Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan.

Professional Services from May 24, 2015 to_June 27, 2015

Fee
Percent Previous Fee Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Survey Services 31,500.00 68.00 21,420.00 19,845.00 1,675.00
Tolal Fee 31,500.00 21,420.00 19.845.00 1,575.00
Total Fee 1,575,00
Total this Invoice $1,575.00
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Gourdie-Fraser, Inc.
123 Wesl Front Street, PO Box 927
Traverse City, Ml 49685-0927
Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634
VISA/MASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt
AR email: melanie@gfa.lc

Invoice

MR CHUCK KORN
CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD
3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, Ml 49684 June 30, 2015
Project No: 15029C
Invoice No: 150293118

Re: GTC Ulility Coordination - Lafranier Road
Services Performed: Engincering and survey consulting services as delailed below.

Professional Services from May 25, 2015 to June 27, 2015
Professional Personnel

Hours Amount
Project Manager
HODGES. JENNIFER 4.00
On site meeling, utility install revisions and field adjustments.

Totals 4.00
Total Labor 460.00

Total this Invoice $460.00
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E Gourdie-Fraser, Inc.
| 123 West Front Street, PO Box 927
Traverse City, M 49685-0927
Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634
VISA/IMASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt

AIR email: melanie@gfa.tc

MR CHUCK KORN
CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD
3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, Ml 49684 June 30, 2015
Project No: 15062
Invoice No: 1506204

Re: Harris & Cedar Run Road Watermain Extension

Services Performed: Engineering, survey and construction services for design, sile inspections, final plans, consiruction
administralion and close out for the extension of the existing 16" low pressure watermain along Harris Road (between North
Long Lake Road and Cedar Run Road) and wes! along Cedar Run Road 10 the address of 5256 Cedar Run Road.
Installation of 16" low pressure watermain along east Cedar Run Road and connection to the exisling Grayhawk walermain.
Appurienances shall include valves, hydrants and waler service leads.

Professional Services from May 25, 2015 to June 27, 2015

Fee

Percent Previous Fee Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Final Design 82.875.00 100.00 82,875.00 41,437.50 41,437.50
Bidding 5,525.00 50.00 2,762.50 0.00 2,762.50
Conslruction Staking 23,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Observation 113,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construclion Administration 22,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Record Drawings / Close 18,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Qut
Tolal Fee 265,500.00 85,637.50 41,437.50 44,200.00

Total Fee 44,200.00

Reimbursable Expenses

Reproduction

6/9/2015 MITA HARRIS RD/CEDAR RUN RD 50.00
WTR MAIN EXT BID AD

Government Fees
6/4/2015 GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY SOIL EROSION PERMIT 540.00
Total Reimbursables 590.00 590.00

Total this Invoice $44,790.00
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Gourdie-Fraser, Inc.
123 West Front Street, PO Box 927
Traverse City, M| 49685-0927
Phone: 231-946-5874, Fax: 231-946-9634

VISAIMASTERCARD Accepted, Due Upon Receipt
AIR email: melanie@gfa.tc

MR CHUCK KORN
CHARTER TWP OF GARFIELD
3848 VETERANS DR

TRAVERSE CITY, M|l 49684 June 30, 2015
Project No: 15107
Invoice No: 1510702

Re: Pump Station #3 Upgrades
Services Performed: Engineering and construction services for design, bidding, observation, administration and closeout
services to upgrade existing pumping station lo replace the existing pumps, mechanical, eleclrical and SCADA lelemetry,

Professional Services from May 25, 2015 to June 27, 2015

Fee
Percent Previous Fee  Current Fee
Billing Phase Fee Complete Earned Billing Billing
Preliminary Design 4.500.00 100.00 4.500.00 3,870.00 630.00
Final Design 7,000.00 95.00 6.650.00 0.00 6.650.00
Bidding Services 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construclion Observalion 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Administration 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Close Out 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tolal Fee 23,500.00 11,150.00 3.870.00 7,280.00
Total Fee 7,280.00
Total this Invoice $7,280.00
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3. d.
Q Gourdie-Fraser

June 18, 2015

Charter Township of Garfield PH 237.946 5874
Attn: Chuck Korn

. 231.946.
2848 Veterans Drive FAXZ31.48,3708
Traverse City, MI 49684 www. gourdiefraser com

Re: Zimmerman Road Water Main Extension
GFA #14283

Dear Chuck:

The project for Zimmerman Road Water Main Extension has been completed. Enclosed please find the
following items submitted by the contractor in compliance with the contract documents.

1) One-Year Maintenance Bond with Riders
2) Letter of Guarantee

3) Certificate of Substantial Completion

4) Affidavit (you will receive this afternoon)

The Record Drawings are completed and both paper and CD copies were delivered to the Grand Traverse
County Department of Public Works.

Gourdie-Fraser, Inc. has provided construction observation for this project and hereby verifies that to the
best of our knowledge, the contractor has installed the facilities according to the plans and specifications.
Based on this information, we recommend that the Township accept the facilities.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact our office.
Sincerely,

i

5

™ "*
Jennifef Hodges, P.E. j

Project Manager
b

Gourdie-Fraser, Inc. C

Enclosures
cc: John Divozzo, Grand Traverse County DPW

TAProjecis\14283\DocumemsiCloseoutTumover letter 1o Township docx

123 W Front Street, Traverse City, Mi 49684 [ omcmmaei e



MAINTENANCE BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surcty, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where
applicable.

SURETY (Name and Address of Principal
Place of Business):

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address):
Elmer's Crane and Dozer Inc
3600 Rennie School Road

Traverse City, MI 49696 The Cincinnati Insurance Company

6200 S Gilmore Road
Fairfield, OH 45014-5141

OWNER (Name and Address):

Grand Traverse County Road Commission
1881 LaFranier Road
Traverse City, Ml 49698

CONTRACT
Date: March 24, 2014
Amount: $3,883,442.40

Project Description (Name and Location): 2014 Millage Projects

BOND

Date (1 year from date of Acceptance by the Municipality): May 8, 2015

Amount:$1,941,721.20
Bond Number: B1207036

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the following terms, to each
cause this Maintenance Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its authorized officer, agent or

representative.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,
That we,Elmer's Crane and Dozer Inc

WHEREAS, said Principal has by written
Agreement, dated March 24, 2014

as Principal, (hereinafier called Principal), and

The Cincinnati Insurance Compagg Surety (hereinafter called

Surety), are held and firmly bound into_Grand
Traverse County Road Commission

2 Obligee (hgreinpfietcelit@RIRTEN, Mol
penal sum of Seven Hundred Twenty One and 20/100--
Dollars §_1,941,721.20 for the
payment whereof Principal and Surety bind
themselves, their heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly
and severally, firmly by these presents

entered into a Contract with said Obligee for __
2014 Millage Projects

in accordance with the General Conditions, the
Drawings and Specifications, which Contract is
by reference incorporated herein, and made a
part hereof, and is referred to as the Contract.,

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this
obligation is such that, if said Principal shall
maintain and remedy any defects due to faulty
materials or workmanship, and pay for any
damage to other Work resulting therefrom, and
additional expense which shall appear within a
period of _ON€ year(s}) from the date of

Gourdie-Fraser, Inc.

00613-1



Charter Township of Garfield —~ Zimmerman Road WM Extension Maintenance Bond

acceptance by the municipality of the Work PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that said Obligee
provided for in the Contract, then this obligation shall give Principal and Surety notice of
to be void; otherwisc to remain in full force and observed defects with reasonable promptness.
effect.

Signed and sealed this _8th day of May ,2015

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
Company: (Corp. Seal) Company: (Corp. Seal)

Elmer's Crane and Dozer Inc Travelers Casualty and Syrety Company of America
Signature; Signature: % )

Name and Title: Name and Title:  /Robert G Chapman, attorney-in-fact
(Attach Power of Attorney)

(Space is provided below for signatures of additional parties, if required).

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: (Corp. Seal) Company; (Corp. Seal)
Signature: Signature:
Name and Title; Name and Title:

NOTE: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Substantial Completion. If Contractor is a
Partnership, all partners should execute Bond.

IMPORTANT:  Surety companies cxecuting Bonds must appear on the Treasury Department’s most
current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the

state where the Project is located.

Gourdie-Fraser, Inc. 00613-2



THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY
Fairfield, Ohio
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation organized under the laws of
the State of Ohio, and having its principal office in the City of Fairfield, Ohio, does hereby constitute and appoint

David G. Chapman; Robert G. Chapmanj; Nathan G. Chapman;g
Marcia J. Miller and/or Cloyd W. Barnes

of Lansing s Michigan its true and fawful Attomey(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal
and deliver on its behalf as Surety, and as its act and deed, any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments, as follows:
Any such obllgations in the United States, up to
Twenty Five Million and No/100 Dollars ($25,000,000.00)
This appointment is made under and by authority of the following resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Company
at a meeting held in the principal office of the Company, a quorum being present and voting, on the 6% day of December, 1958, which
resolution is still in effect:

“RESOLVED, that the President or any Vice President be hereby authorized, and empowered to appoint Attorneys-in-
Fact of the Company to execute any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the
Corporation, and may authorize any officer or any such Attomey-in-Fact to affix the corporate seal; and may with or
without cause modify or revoke any such appointment or authority. Any such writings so executed by such Attorneys-in-
Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected
officers of the Company.”

This Power of Attomney is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolution adepted by the
Board of Directors of the Company at a meeting duly called and held on the 7 day of December, 1973,

“RESOLVED, that the signature of the President or a Vice President and the seal of the Company may be affixed by
facsimile on any power of attomey granted, and the signature of the Secretary of Assistant Secretary and the seal of the
Company may be affixed by facsimile to any certificate of any such power and any such power of certificate bearing
such facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company. Any such power so executed and sealed
and certified by certificate so executed and sealed shall, with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached,
continue to be valid and binding on the Company.”

IN WITNESS WHERECF, THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be sealed with ils corporate
seal, duly attested by its Vice President this 10% day of May, 2012.

THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

_Sj;\mk_\_& A k}-—\_y:‘:(

Vice President
STATE OF OHIO ) ss;
CQUNTY OF BUTLER )

On this 10* day of May, 2012, before me came the above-named Vice President of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY,
to me personally known to be the officer described herein, and acknowledged that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the corporate
seal of said Company and the corporate seal and the signature of the officer were duly affixed and subscribed to said instrument by the

authority and direction of said corporation,
‘\‘““ll"u,'

o ,
8 Y\(:\\ﬁ\IL 6""@

2t JAM

MAHK J. HKLLER Attorney at Law
NGTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF OHIO

My commission has no explration

date. Section 147.03 O.R.C.

I, the undersigned Secretary or Assistant Secretary of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, hereby certify that the above
is a true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Company, and do hereby further certify that the said Power of
Attomney is still in full force and effect.

GIVEN under my hand and seal of said Company at Fairfield, Ohio.

this 8th day of May, 2015 : /{ /g g

Assistant Secretary

BN-1005 (5 12)



tHE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

CINCINNATI, OHIO

DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER

To Bond No.: B1207036

WHEREAS, on or about the 24th day of March, 2014, Elmer's Crane and Dozer Inc, as Contractor, entered into a written
agreement with Grand Traverse County Road Commission as Owner, for the consiruction of 2014 Millage Projects herein referred
1o as the Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor, as Principal, and THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, as Surety, made, executed, and
delivered to said Owner, as Obligee, the joint and several Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Owner has requested that Garfield Township, 3848 Veterans Drive, Traverse City, MI 49684 (hereinafter called
“Co-Obligee”) said Co-Obligee having a material interest in the performance of said contract, be named as an Obligee on the
Bond, and has requested the Contractor and the Surety to join with the Owner in the execution and delivery of this Rider and
the Contractor and Surety have agreed so to do upon the conditions stated.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of One Dollar and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the undersigned hereby agree as follows:

The aforesaid Bond shall be and it is hereby amended as follows:
1. The name of Garfield Township, as Co-Obligee shall be added to said bond as a named Obligee.

2. The rights of the Co-Obligee as a named Obligee shall be subject to the conditions precedent that the Owner perform
its obligations to the Principal and the rights of the of the Co-Obligee shall not be greater than that of the Owner,
named as Obligee on the original bond; provided, however, that the aggregate liability of the Surety under said bond,
to the Owner and Co-Obligee, as their inlerests may appear, is limited to the penal sum of said bond and provided,
further, that the Surety may, at its option, make any payments under said bond by check issued jointly to the Owner
and Co-Obligee.

3. The Surety shall not be liable under this bond to the Obligee or Co-Obligee, or to either of them, unless the said
Obligees, or either of them, shall make payments to the Principal or to the Surety, should it arrange for or underiake
the completion of the contract upon default of the Principal, strictly in accordance with the terms of said contract, and
shall otherwise satisfy all terms and conditions and perform all other obligations set forth in said contract at the time
and in the manner provided for therein.

4. To the extent of any payment made by Surety to the Obligees, or either of them, the Surely shall be subrogated to,
and shall be entitled to an assignment of, all rights of the payees, either against the Principal or against any other
party liable to the payee in connection with the loss which is the subject of the payment by the Surety.

5. If an additional Obligee is a mortgagee, any change or alteration increasing the contract price shall not be subject to
the terms of this rider unless sufficient money has been deposited with the Obligees to cover any such increase and
consent of surety has been obtained.

6. Recovery hereunder by an additional Obligee shall be reduced by the loss of the Surety, if any, resulting from the
failure of the Obligees or someone on their behalf to obtain sufficient insurance.

7. Except as herein modified, said performance and/or payment and/or maintenance bonds shall be and remain in full
force and effect.

Initials of Owner/Obligee -‘(‘W Initials of Co-Obligee _@é; Initials of Contractor ﬂb‘

SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED

Page 1of 2
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SIGNATURE PAGE

SIGNED, SEALED, AND DATED this 8th day of

$-2600 (2/93)

May, 2015,

Grand Traverse Counly Road Commission

Owner/Obligee
By:

Garfield Township

Co-Obligee

By:

Eimer's Crane and Dozer Inc

Contractor

By: /%‘/a[y,/(/,_

TH%IN%URANCE COMPANY
> l,"‘

Atlorney-in-Fact

Page 2 of 2



THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY
Fairfield, Ohio
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation organized under the laws of
the State of Ohio, and having its principal office in the City of Fairfield, Ohio, does hereby counstitute and appoint

David G. Chapman; Robert G. Chapman; Nathan G. Chapman;
Marcia J. Miller and/or Cloyd W. Barmes

of Lansing, Michigan its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal
and deliver on its behalf as Surety, and as its act and deed, any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments, as follows:
Any such obligations in the United States, up to
Twenty Five Million and No/100 Dollars ($25,000,000.00)
This appointment is made under and by authority of the following resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Company
at a meeting held in the principal office of the Company, a quorum being present and voting, on the &% day of December, 1958, which
resolution is still in effect:

“RESOLVED, that the President or any Vice President be hereby authorized, and empowered to appoint Attorneys-in-
Fact of the Company to execute any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the
Corporation, and may authorize any officer or any such Attomey-in-Fact to affix the corporate seal; and may with or
without cause modify or revoke any such appointment or authority. Any such writings so executed by such Attomeys-in-
Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected
officers of the Company,”

This Power of Attorney is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolution adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Company at a mecting duly called and held on the 7™ day of December, 1973.

“RESOLVED, that the signature of the President or a Vice President and the seal of the Company may be affixed by
facsimile on any power of attoney granted, and the signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary and the seal of the
Company may be affixed by facsimile to any certificate of any such power and any such power of certificate bearing
such facsimile signature and seal shall be vaiid and binding on the Company. Any such power so executed and sealed
and certified by certificate so executed and sealed shall, with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached,
centinue to be valid and binding on the Company.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be sealed with its corporate
seal, duly attested by its Vice President this 10" day of May, 2012.

THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

Sfcj\mkg{\ A k)_)\):‘:%u

Vice President

STATE OF OHIO ) ss:
COUNTY OF BUTLER )

On this 10" day of May, 2012, before me came the above-named Vice President of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY,
to me personally known to be the officer described herein, and acknowledged that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the corporate
seal of said Company and the corporate seal and the signature of the officer were duly affixed and subscribed to said instrument by the

autherity and direction of said corporation.

““ll Ilu"
MARK dJd. HHLLER Attorney at Law
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF OHIO
My commission has no expiration
date. Section 147.03 O.R.C.

[, the undersigned Secretary or Assistant Secretary of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, hereby certify that the above
is a true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Company, and do hereby further certify that the said Power of
Attomey is still in full force and effect.

GIVEN under my hand and seal of said Company at Fairfield, Ohio.

8th day of May, 2015 .
s G-

Assistant Secretary

BN-1005 (312



THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

CINCINNATI, OHIO

DUAL OBLIGEE RIDER

To Bond No.. B1207036

WHEREAS, on or about the 24th day of March, 2014, Elmer's Crane and Dozer Inc, as Conlractor, entered into a writlen
agreement with Grand Traverse County Road Commission as Owner, for the construction of 2014 Millage Projects herein referred
to as the Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor, as Principal, and THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, as Surety, made, executed, and
delivered to said Owner, as Obligee, the joint and several Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Owner has requested that Grand Traverse County DPW, 2650 Lafranier Road, Traverse City, MI 49686
(hereinafter called “Co-Obligee”) said Co-Obligee having a material interest in the performance of said contract, be named as
an Obligee on the Bond, and has requested the Contractor and the Surety to join with the Owner in the execution and delivery
of this Rider and the Contractor and Surety have agreed so to do upon the conditions stated.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of One Dollar and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the undersigned hereby agree as follows:

The aforesaid Bond shall be and it is hereby amended as follows:
1. The name of Grand Traverse County DPW, as Co-Obligee shall be added to said bond as a named Obligee.

2. The rights of the Co-Obligee as a named Obligee shall be subject to the conditions precedent that the Owner perform
its obligations to the Principal and the rights of the of the Co-Obligee shall not be greater than that of the Owner,
named as Obligee on the original bond; provided, however, that the aggregate liability of the Surety under said bond,
to the Owner and Co-Obligee, as their interests may appear, is limited to the penal sum of said bond and provided,
further, that the Surety may, al its option, make any payments under said bond by check issued jointly to the Owner
and Co-Obligee.

3. The Surety shall not be liable under this bond to the Obligee or Co-Obligee, or to either of them, unless the said
Obligees, or either of them, shall make payments to the Principal or to the Surety, should it arrange for or undertake
the completion of the contract upon default of the Principal, strictly in accordance with the terms of said contract; and
shall otherwise satisfy all terms and conditions and perform all other obligations set forth in said contract at the time
and in the manner provided for therein.

4. To the extent of any payment made by Surety {o the Obligees, or either of them, the Surety shall be subrogated to,
and shall be entitled to an assignment of, all rights of the payees, either against the Principal or against any other
party liable to the payee in connection with the loss which is the subject of the payment by the Surety.

5. If an additional Obligee is a mortgagee, any change or alteration increasing the contract price shall not be subject to
the terms of this rider unless sufficient money has been deposited with the Obligees to cover any such increase and
consent of surety has been obtained.

6. Recovery hereunder by an additional Obligee shall be reduced by the loss of the Surety, if any, resulting from the
failure of the Obligees or someone on their behalf to obtain sufficient insurance.

7. Except as herein modified, said performance andf/or payment and/or maintenance bonds shall be and remain in full
force and effect.

Initials of Owner/Obligee l& Initials of Co-Obligee ﬁ_ Initials of Contractor /JZJ

SIGNATURE PAGE ATTACHED
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SIGNATURE PAGE

SIGNED, SEALED, AND DATED this 8th day of  May, 2015.

Grand Traverse County Road Commission

Owner/Obligee

By:

Grand Traverse County DPW

Co-Obligee

By:

Elmer's Crane and Dozer Inc

Contractor

THE%]NNATI %URANCE COMPANY
) Y

Attorney-in-Facl

Page 2 of 2
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AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLETION/CONSENT OF SURETY

Team Elmers o

Name of Contractor
3600 Rennie School Road, Traverse City, Ml 49684

Address of Contractor

being duly sworn, deposes and says that they enlered into a contract with the Charter Township of
Garfield on the 24 dayof March, 2014 for the Zimmerman Road Water Main Exlension

Contraclor further says that the said contract has been completed and all indebledness incurred by

him to subcontractors, suppliers, and laborers in their employ has been paid in full.

Contractor further says that there are no oulstanding or pending claims, liens or aclions in law

involving this contract.

Contractor further says this affidavit is furnished as an inducement to the Owner to make final

payment on said contract.

WITNESSES: SIGNED:

% ZZQQ{Z\ ( j_ ﬁw ﬂ’?ﬁ’/({;{_\K Max A Got-

Subscribed and sworn to before me this (B’f‘ﬁ day of L;)M"I‘L 1S :

Notary Public drmd. Timu>rss Lo O 1f7,
My commission expires: 01)04 Vi

CONSENT OF SURETY
We., as Surety on the above-described contract, hereby give our consent to the payment to the Contractor

as indicated.
NAME OF SURETY COMPANY: Th: Cincnnah Jnisvrance (o M 7
PERFORMWAND PA T BOND NO.:_[21207045

Signed:.

Date: 6/18/2015

=

Narme: Rober_t __G Chapman, attorney—in-fact__ o




THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY
Fairfield, Ohio
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation organized under the laws of
the State of Ohio, and having its principal office in the City of Fairfield, Ohio, does hereby constitute and appoint

David G. Chapman; Robert G. Chapmanj; Nathan G. Chapman;
Marcia J. Miller and/or Cloyd W. Barnes

of Lansing, Michigan its true and lawful Attomey(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal
and deliver on its behalf as Surety, and as its act and deed, any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments, as follows:
Any such obligations in the United States, up to
Twenty Five Million and No/100 Dollars ($25,000,000.00)
This appomtment is made under and by autherity of the following resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Company
at a meeting held in the principal office of the Company, a quorum being present and voting, on the 6" day of December, 1958, which
resolution is still in effect:

“RESOLVED, that the President or any Vice President be hereby authorized, and empowered to appoint Attorneys-in-
Fact of the Company to execute any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the
Corporation, and may authorize any officer or any such Attomey-in-Fact to affix the corporate seal; and may with or
without cause modify or revoke any such appointment or authority. Any such writings so executed by such Atlomeys-in-
Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected
officers of the Company.”

This Power of Attomney is signed and secaled by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolution adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Company at a meeting duly called and held on the 7" day of December, 1973,

“RESOLVED, that the signature of the President or a Vice President and the seal of the Company may be affixed by
facsimile on any power of attorney granted, and the signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary and the scal of the
Company may be affixed by facsimile to any cenificate of any such power and any such power of certificate bearing
such facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company. Any such power so executed and sealed
and certified by cerlificate so executed and sealed shall, with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached,
continue to be valid and binding on the Company.”

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be sealed with its corporate
seal, duly attested by its Vice President this 10" day of May, 2012.

THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

Sj:_s\mgq,\ A_x_\m

Vice President
STATE OF OHIQ ) ss:
COUNTY OF BUTLER )

On this 10" day of May, 2012, before me came the above-named Vice President of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY,
to me personally known to be the officer described herein, and acknowledged that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the corporate
seal of said Company and the corporate seal and the signature of the officer were duly affixed and subscribed to said instrument by the

authority and direction of said corporation.
“1"‘""""

s

‘7% J AL

MARK J H LLER, Attorney at Law
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF OHIO

My commission has no expiration

date. Section 147.03 O.R.C,

L, the undersigned Secretary or Assistant Secretary of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, hereby certify that the above
is a true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Company, and do hereby further certify that the said Power of

Antomey is still in full force and effect.

Assistant Secretary

[T

X

gy,

GIVEN under my hand and seal of said Company at Fairfield, Obio.
this 8th day of May, 2015

BN-1ODS (312



LETTER OF GUARANTEE
DATE: 05/07/2015 14283

PROJECT NO.
OWNER: Charter Township of Garfield
3484 Veterans Drive
Traverse City, Ml 49684

PROJECT: Zimmerman Road Watermain Extension

Gentlemen:

As the contractor for this project, | hereby guarantee all materials and equipment
furnished and all work performed on this project including any restoration work
necessary to be repaired or replaced.

With respect to this project, to our personal knowledge, all payments have been
made and there are no liens on said system

This guarantee will remain in effect for a period of one (1) year from the date of
acceptance by the Municipality.

Signature;
/N a

#(Developer/Cofitractor)

Title: /HAx A Bor

(Please Print or Type)

Company Name:

Team Elmers
3600 Rennie School Road
Traverse City, Ml 49684



Certificate of Substantial Completion

Project: Zimmerman Road Watermain Extension
Owner: Charter Township of Garfield Owner's Contract No.:
Contract: Team Elmers Engineer's Project No.: 14283

This [tentative] [definitive] Certificate of Substantial Completion applies to:
X All Work under the Contract Documents: [0 The following specified portions of the Work:

October 14, 2014
Date of Substantial Completion

The Work to which this Certificate applies has been inspected by authorized representatives of Owner,
Contractor, and Engineer, and found to be substantially complete, The Date of Substantial Completion
of the Project or portion thereof designated above is hereby declared and is also the date of
commencement of applicable warranties required by the Contract Documents, except as stated below.

A definitive list of items to be completed or corrected is attached hereto. This list may not be all-
inclusive, and the failure to include any items on such list does not alter the responsibility of the
Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The responsibilities between Owner and Contractor for security, operation, safety, maintenance,
heat, utilities, insurance and warranties shall be as provided in the Contract Documents except as

amended as follows:
[0 Amended Responsibilities X Not Amended

Owner's Amended Responsibilities:

Contractor's Amended Responsibilities:

EJCDC C-625 Certificate of Substantial Completion
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by the Construction Specifications Institute.
Page1o0f2




The following documents are attached to and made part of this Certificate:

Punchlist dated 3-2-2015

This Certificate does not constitute an acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract
Documents nor is it a release of Contractor's obligation to complete the Work in accordance with the
Contract Documents.

[ %L"‘%J 5-/9-/5

E?qd ted) iy Engineer 4 Date

i A il
Acceptcd&gy Contractof’ Date
Accepted by Owner Date

EJCDC C-625 Certificate of Substantial Completion
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by the Construction Specifications Institute,

Page2of2
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Tobin & Co.

Comments and Recommendations

idual fund financial statements of The Charter Township of Garfield, Grand
Traverse County, for the year ended December 31, 2014 and have issued our report thereon. As part of our examination, we made a study and
evaluation of the Township’s system of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary to evaluate the sysiem as required by
generally accepted auditing standards. The purpose of our study and evaluation was to determine the nature, timing and extent of the auditing
procedures necessary for expressing an opinion on the Township’s financial statements. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be

necessary 10 express an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole.

We have audited the basic financial statements and the indiv

Our study and evaluation made for the limited purpose described above would not necessarily disclosc all material weaknesses in the
system. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on the system of internal control of The Charer Township of Garfield taken as a whole. Asa

result of our examination, we respectfully submit the following comments and recommendations.

General

journals, general ledgers and account books

Your present Clerk, Treasurer and Deputies maintain receipls journals, disbursements
re specific

prescribed in the Uniform Accounting Procedures developed by the State Department of Treasury. Management was sent a letier with mo
recommendations. Comments and recommendations regarding items other than the accounting records themselves are as follows:

Budgets and Procedures
The required budgets were prepared for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Four cost cenlers ¢
formal budget amendments.

xceeded their budgets without

General Fund

The fund balance increased by $445,098 from the prior year and totaled

The General Fund is presented on Schedule 1 of this report.
d by the Township Board for land acquisition and other to be specified

7,571,129 at December 31, 2014, of which $681,067 has been assigne:
expenditures.

Special Revenue Funds

Fire Fund
Township fire protection. Revenues consisted

This fund, presented on Schedule 2, is used 10 account for the special assessment 1ax levy for
0, consisting of contractual payments to the

principally of property laxes of $1,585,719 and carncd interest of $10,891. Expenditures were $1,585,72
Grand Traverse Metro Fire Department. The fund balance at December 31, 2014 was $2,272,149.

Public Improvement Fund

o account for special assessments levied for Township road

This fund, presented on Schedule 6, was formed by Board resolution t
alance at December 31, 2014 was

improvement projects and for funds allocated from the General Fund for major capital improvements. The fund b
$1,187,023.

Budpet Stabilization Fund
This fund, presented on Schedule 7, is uscd by the Township to set aside a portion of the General Fund surplus for future budgetary needs.
The fund is permitied by statute. Interest was $969 for the year, and the fund balance at December 31, 2014 was $80,333.

Street Lighting Fund

This fund, presented on Schedule 8, is used 10 accounl for special
Assessments and earned interest {otaled $22,522 for the year, while utilily expenses were

$17,348.

assessments collected from residents of special street lighting districts.
$21.860. The fund balance at December 31,2014 was
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Comments and Recommendations

Debt Service Funds

Public Works Fund

This fund, presented on Schedule 9, is uscd to account for accumulated transfers and earned interest set aside for service of current and

future obligations of the Township. The fund balance at December 31, 2014 was $103,343.

Park System Fund

This fund, presented on Schedule 3, is used to account for
for, and operations of, the Township’s parklands. Revenues consiste
promotion and $32,868 for capital improvements. The fund balance al

{axes levied and debt service for the purchase of land, buildings and equipment
d of current taxes of $112,169. Expendilures were $147,636 for community

December 31, 2014 was $486,079.

Building Fund

This fund, presented on Schedule 10, is used to account for taxes levied and debt service 1o
There were no transactions during the ycar, and no fund balance at December 31, 2014.

r the construction of new municipal buildings.

Capital Projects Funds

Enterprisc Fund

The sewer and water operations of the Township,
Township’s basic financial statements. These financial stalements incorporate all aspe

including special assessments and Jong-term debt.

maintained in part by the Township and in part by the County DPW, are presented in the
cts of the sewer and water operations and financial position,

Juciary Funds
consist of the Trust and Agency Fund, the Current Tax Collection Fund, the Retirement

These funds are presented on Schedule 11. They
the Township that are not available for Township use bul

Fund, and the Flex Medical Insurance Fund, and are used to account for monies received by
are due to other units of government, other funds, or to firms and individuals.

Property Tax Collections

The collection and distribution of the 2013 tax levy was hand
in order of payment. Deposits were made timely and intact. Distributions to taxing units during the colle

statutory requirements.

led in an excellent manner by the Township Treasurer. Paid receipts were filed
clion period werc in accordance with

See Schedule 12 for a summary of the 2013 tax levy and collections.

Payroll Procedures
The Clerk maintains required payroll records, Payroll withholdings were promptly remitted to various agencics and required reports were

properly prepared. It appears that Forms W-2 and/or 1099 were properly utilized.
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Insurance and Surety Bond Coverage

rs of Michigan and has such coverage as fire and extended
{ and crime coverage. Records indicate thal coverage was
pervisor, Accountant, and Assistant Treasurer have surety

Records reflect that the Township is insured through Municipal Underwrite
coverage, general liability, errors and omissions, workmen’s compensation, equipmen
reviewed during the audit year. The Clerk, Treasurer, and their deputies, as well as the Su
bond coverage. There is also a blanket bond covering all employees.

Other Dala

ry accounts and the purchase of certificales of deposit and other investments of

We are pleased to note the use of interest bearing deposito
of over $37,000 for governmental activities for the audit year. This practice

temporary surplus funds. Thesc practices resulted in eamed interest
reflects favorably on the Treasurer and other Board members.

Afier completion of our audit, we will mail the necessary copies of our report {o the State Depariment of Treasury.

We appreciate the courtesy extended our field examiners in the conduct of this audit.

Your confidence is respected. Please contact us if questions arise or assistance is needed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Township Board
Garfield Charter Township
Grand Traverse County
Traverse City, Michigan 49684

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actjvities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the Garfield Charter Township as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Tewnship’s basic financial stalements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

tion and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
his includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparalion
tement, whether due to fraud or error.

Management is responsible for the prepara
accepted in the United States of America;
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material missta

Auditor’s Responsibility

on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

Our responsibility is to express opinions
nd perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable

standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan a
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
scted depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
ad or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemnal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presemtation of the

Linancial statements in order lo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounling estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
nd information of the Garficld Charter Township, as of December 31, 2014, and the

le, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles

In our opinion, the financial stalements refetred to above
activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fu
respective changes in financial position and, where applicab
penerally accepied in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary
comparison information on pages 10 through 13 and 37 through 49 be presented 1o supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it Lo be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with managemenl’s responses Lo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we oblained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide

us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

400 Eest Eighth Certified Public Accountants

Traverse City

Michigan 49586 [
231 947-0151

231 947-1362 Fax
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the The Charter Township of
Garfield's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical seclion

are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has becn subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audil of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly 10 the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statemens or 10 the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in refation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Gt g (o, P

TOBIN & CO,, P.C.
Centified Public Accountants
Traverse City, Michigan
April 15,2015
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The Charter Township of Garfield Management Discussion and Analysis Letter

As the Township Board of The Charter Township of Garfield, we offer readers of the Township’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of The Charter Township of Garfield for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014,

Financial Highlights

The assets of The Charter Township of Garfield exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $64,942,607. Of this amount,

$10,985,931 may be used to mect the Township’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

ported combined ending fund balances of $11,729,147, an increase of

As of the close of the current fiscal year, Township’s governmental funds re
nt of the 1otal amount, $6,890,062 is available for spending at the

$1,161,595 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately fifty-eight perce!
Township’s discretion.
At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $6,890,062 or two hundred forty-six percent of the total

general fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended 10 serve as an introduction to The Charter Township of Garfield’s basic financial statements. The
Township’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information, in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Govemnmeni-wide financial stalements: The governmeni-wide financial statements are designed 1o provide readers with a broad overview of the
Township’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-scctor business.

n all of the Township’s assets and liabilities, with the differcnce between the two reported as net

The statement of net position presents information o
ful indicator of whether the Township’s financial position is improving

~sition. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a use
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Township’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in
net position are reported as soon as the underlying cvent giving rise 1o the change oceurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

stinguish functions of the Township thal are principally supported by taxes and
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.
road projects, sanitation, and recreation. The business-typc

Both of the government-wide financial statements di
intergovemnmental revenucs from other functions that
The govemnmental activities of the Township include: general government, public safety,
activities of the Township include building inspections and scwer and water system.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report.

to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
d local governments, uses fund accounting lo ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
be divided into three catcgories: povernmental funds, proprietary funds, and

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used
The Charter Township of Garfield, Iike other state an
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Township can

fiduciary funds:

al funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the

overnment-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
11 as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such

Government
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the g

near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as we
information may be uscful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial stalements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this

comparison between governmental funds and governmental activilies.

10
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.e Charler Township of Garficld maintains nine individual govern
balance sheet and in the povernmental fund statements of revenues,
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governme
data for cach of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The Township adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the genera

Proprictary funds: The Charter Township of Garfield maintains a single proprictary fu
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial stalememts. The Township uses an enterprisc fu
sewer activity.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are use

reflected in the government-wide financi
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprictary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 and 49-50 of this report.

Notes to the financial stalements: The notes provide additional in
government-wide and fund financial stalcments. The notes to the

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted carlicr, net position may serve over time as a usc
Garfield, assets cxceeded liabilities by $64,942,607 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the most significant portion of the Township’s net position, seventy-cight
buildings, machinery, and equipment, less any related debt used to acquire lhose
ssets to provide services o citizens; consequently, these assets arc not avai
sital assels is reporied net of related deby, it should be noted that the

_ capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Township’s Net Position

mental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Fire Fund,
ntal funds are combined into a single, aggregated prescntation. Individual fund

fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital projects funds.
1 fund and other governmental funds 1o demonstrate compliance with this budget.

nd. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
nd to account for its water and

d to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
al statements because the resources of thosc funds are not available to support the Township’s own

formation that is essential 1o a full understanding of the data provided in the
financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 33 of this report.

ful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of The Charter Township of

percent, reflects its investment in capital assets such as land,

assets that are still outstanding. The Township used these capital
lable for future spending. Although the Township’s investment in ils
resources nceded to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since

2014 2013
Governmental Business-Type Govemmental Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total Activities Activitics Total

Current and Other Assets $ 12,189,095 § 12367484 § 24,556,579 $ 11,027,432 § 10,501,516 § 21,528,948
Capital Assets 7.541,665 34.628.072 42,169,737 7.712.248 35,796,526 43.508.774

Total Assets $_19,730760 §_46,995556 §_66.726310 § 18,739,680 5 46298042 & 65,037,722
Long-term Liabilities $ - 3 525000 % 525,000 $ - 3 555,000 § 555,000
Other Liabilities 459,948 798,761 1,258,709 448,922 902,871 1,351,793

Total Liabilities § 459948 §  1,323.761 § 1783709 3 448,922 §__ 1457871 & 1,906,793
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailablc Revenue $ - Ny - 3 - 3 - $ 106,901 $106.901
Net Position:
Invested in Capilal Assels $ 7,541,665 $ 34,103,072 $ 41,644,737 § 7,712,248 $ 35241526 § 42,953,774
Restricted 4,839,085 7,472,854 12,319,939 2,599,906 7,458,813 10,058,719
Unrestricted 6.890.062 4,095,869 10,085,931 7.978.604 2.032931 10,011,535

Total Net Position $ 19270812  §_4567) $ 64942607 $_18200758  $._44733270 §. 63,004,028

+ additional portion of the Township’s position, e
4, The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $1 0,985,931 may be used to meet

-ditors.

11

leven percent, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be
the Township's ongoing obligations to citizens and



Al the end of the current fiscal year, the Township is able 1o report positive b
a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Tobin & Co.

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the Township’s net position by $§993,114.

alances in all three categories of nel position, both for the government as
The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

2014 2013
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Aclivities Activities Total
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 315721 % 5,448,111 $ 5,763,832 $ 271,138 § 5429738 3§ 5,700,876
Operating Granis and
Contributions - - - a - 5
General Revenues
Property Taxes 3,618,378 - 3,618,378 3,448,636 - 3,448,636
State Grants 1,298,315 - 1,298,315 1,537,323 - 1,537,323
Franchise Fees 276,902 - 279,902 274,837 - 274,837
Unrestricted Investments
Eamings 85,874 263,284 349,158 83,224 - 83,224
Other 143,362 - 143,362 (98.123) (261.964) (360.087)
Total Revenues 5,741,552 5,711,395 11,452,947 5,517,035 5,161,774 10,684,809
Program Expenses
Legislative 193,232 - 193,232 146,499 - 146,499
General Government 1,279,172 - 1,279,172 1,319,411 - 1,319,411
Public Safety 2,848,638 - 2,848,638 2,611,581 - 2,611,58]
Public Works 259,053 4,772,870 5,031,923 189,610 4,623,809 4,813,419
Recreation and Cultural 149,741 - 149,741 130,944 - 130,944
Interest on Long-term
Debt 16,602 - 16,602 35.359 - 35,359
Total Expenses 4.746.438 4.772.870 9,519,308 4.433.404 4,623,809 9.057,213
Change in Net Position 995,114 938,525 1,933,639 1,083,631 543,965 1,627,596
Net Position — Beginning of Year 18.275.698 44,733,270 63,008,968 17,207,127 44,189,305 61,396,432
Net Pasition ~ End of Year $ 19270812 §_ 45671795  $.64,942.607 5 _18.290.758 $_44733270 § 63,024,028

For the most part, increases in expenscs closely parallcled inflation and growth in the demand for services.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the Township’s net position by $938,525. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

waler and sewer lines and sound management tools,

Financial Analysis of the Township’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Township used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financc-related legal requirements.

is 1o provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of

Governmental funds: The focus of the Township’s governmental funds
hip’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may

spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Towns
serve as a useful measure of a Township’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Township’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $10,729,147, an increase of

$1,161,595 in comparison with the prior year.

12
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| amount, $6,890,062, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the

Approximately fifty-cight percent of the tota
ew spending because it has already been

Township’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for n
committed for a variety of other restricted purposes.
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Township. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was

$6,890,062 and the total fund balance was $7,571,129. Unassigned fund balance represents two hundred forty-six percent of total general fund
expenditures. The fund balance of the Township’s general fund increased by $445,098 during the current fiscal year.

Proprietary funds: The Township’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in
more detail.

r and Sewer Fund al the end of the year amounted 1o $4,095,869. The total increase in net position was

Unrestricted net position of the Wate
n of the Township's business-type activities,

$938,525. Other faclors concerning the finances of the fund have already been addressed in the discussio

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

tal and business type activities as of December 31, 2014, amounts to
ets includes: (land, building and improvements, sewer and water

Capital assets: The Township’s investment in capital assets for its governmen
in the Township’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal

$42,169,737 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital ass
systems, machinery and equipment, park facilitics, etc). There was no change

year,
Details of the Township’s capital assets arc contained in the notes to the financial stalements on page 28 and 29.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the Township had total bonded and installment debt outstanding of $525,000. This debt is
backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Hitional information on the Township’s long-term debt can be found in the notes on pages 29 and 30.

Economic Faclors and Nexi Year’s Budgets
Economic factors for the Township appear 1o be stable, the State has re-authorized statutory funding and the Township’s tax base increased
significantly.

Requests for Information

ide a genera) overview of The Charter Township of Garfield’s finances for all those with an interest in the
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

eld, 3848 Velerans Drive, Traverse City, Michigan 49684 or you

This financial report is designed to prov
Township’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
addresscd to the Supervisor, Treasurer, or Clerk of The Charter Township of Garfi

may phone us at 231-941-1620.

13



Assels

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Taxes Receivable — Current
Special Assessmenis Receivable
Due from Other Activities
Prepaid Expenditures
Capital Assets:
Land
Onher Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Intangible Assets, Net of Amortization

Total Asscts

Liabilities
~ounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
‘¢ 1o Other Activities

Long-term Liabilities, Net of Discounts:

Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets and Intangible Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Tobin & Co.

The Charter Township of Garfield
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

§ 7,931,407

§ 10,915,782

$ 18,847,189

- 611,779 611,779
611,018 470,999 1,082,017
3,158,413 1,952 3,160,365
18,954 - 18,954
453,088 366,972 820,060
16,215 - 16,215
4,271,072 102,927 4,373,999
3,046,917 34,501,293 37,548,210
223,676 23,852 247,528
19,730.760 46.995,556 66,726,316
85,792 704,769 790,561
374,156 93,992 468,148
- 45,000 45,000
- 480,000 480,000
459,548 1,323,761 1,783,709
7,541,665 34,103,072 41,644,737
4,839,085 7.472,854 12,311,939
6,890,062 4,095,869 10,985,931
519270812 $ 45671795 4,942

- Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements
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Garfield Charter Township
Statement of Activities
December 31, 2014
Net (Expenses) Revenues
Program Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Fees and Operating
Charges For Grants and Governmental  Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  _Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
Legislative $ 193,232 $ - § - 3 (193,232) $ - §  (193,232)
General Government 1,279,172 47,599 - (1,231,573) - (1,231,573)
Public Safety 2,848,638 - - (2,848,638) - (2,848,638)
Health and Welfare 123,912 - - (123,912) - (123,912)
Public Works 135,141 268,122 - 132,981 - 132,981
Recreation and Cultural 149,741 - - (149,741) - (149,741)
Interest on Long-term Debt 16,602 - - (16.602) - (16.602)
Total Governmental Activitics 4,746,438 315,721 - (4.430,717) - (4,430.717)
Business-lype Activities:
Sewer and Water 4,772,870 5,448,111 - - 675,241 675,241
~~tal Business-type Activities 4,772,870 5.448.111 - - 675,241 675.241
Jlal $9.519,308 $ 5763832 3} - (4,430.717) 675,241 (3,755.476)
General Revenues:
Taxes 3,618,378 - 3,618,378
State Grants 1,298,315 - 1,298,315
Franchise Fees 279,902 - 279,902
Invesiment Eamnings 85,874 263,284 349,158
Miscellaneous 143,362 - 143,362
Total General Revenues 5.425.831 263,284 5,689.115
Change in Net Position 995,114 938,525 1,933,639
Net Position — Beginning 18,290,758 44,733,270 63,024,028
Prior Period Adjustment (15.060) - {15.060)
Net Position — Ending $ 19270812 § 45,671,795 $ 64,942,607

_ce Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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The Charter Township of Garfield
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014

Other Tolal
Governmental Governmental
General Fire Park Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1585666 $ 142023 $ 800,230 $1,208,409 § 3,736,328
Certificales of Deposit 3,378,799 735,947 - 80,333 4,195,079
Investments - - = - -
Accounts Receivable 596,018 - 15,000 - 611,018
Taxes Receivable — Current 1,762,734 1,394,179 - 1,500 3,158,413
Special Assessments Receivable:
Current - - - 18,954 18,954
Delinquent = 2 = = -
Deferred - - 2 - .
Interest Receivable on Assessments - % - L 5
Duc from Other Funds 341,224 - 17,872 93,992 453,088
Prepaid Expenditures 16,215 - - - 16,215
Total § 7680656 §.2272]49 5 _ 833,102 $1.403,188 12,189.095
Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable b 38796 $ - 3 7,725 $ 1,472 47,993
Accrued Vacation Pay 37,799 - - - 37,799
Due to Other Funds 32,932 - 339,298 1,926 374,156
Total 109,527 - 347,023 3.398 459,948
Fund Equity:
Fund Balance — Committed 681,067 2,272,149 486,079 1,399,790 4,839,085
Fund Balance — Unassigned 6,890,062 - - - 6.850.062
Total 7.571,129 2,272,149 486,079 1,399,790 11,729,147
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity § 7680656 § 2272149 § 833,102 $1,403,188

Amounts repored for governmental activitics on the statement of net position are different because:
Capital and intangible asscts used in governmental activities are nol financial resources and therefore

are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities.

see Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and Permits
State Grants
Charges for Services
Interest and Rents
Other

Total

Expenditures

Legislative
General Government
Public Safety
Health and Welfare
“yblic Works
creation and Culture
cer
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Total

Excess Revenues (Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers (Out)

Total

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) and

Other Financing Soutces (1]ses)

Fund Balance — Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Ycar

= Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The Charter Township of Garfield

Tobin & Co.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governimental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Other Total
Governmentali Governmental
General Fire Park Funds Funds

$ 1,928998 § 1,585,719 & 99,559 $ - $3,614,276
268,122 - - - 268,122
1,298,315 - - - 1,298,315
33,874 13,725 - - 47,599
351,915 10,891 - 2,970 365,776
68.126 14,315 12,610 48311 143,362
3,949,350 1,624,650 112,169 51,281 5,737.450
193,232 - - - 193,232
751,229 - - - 751,229
1,262,918 1,585,720 - - 2,848,638
123,912 - - - 123,912
82,236 - - 21,860 104,096

- - 90,209 - 90,209

386,310 - 24,559 - 410,869
4,200 - 32,868 - 37,068

o - B 16,602 16,602
2.804.037 1,585,720 147.636 38.462 4,575,855
1.145313 38.930 (35.467) 12,819 1,161,595
- - - 700,215 700,215
(700.215) - - - (700,215)
(700,215) - - 700,215 -
445,098 38,930 (35,467) 713,034 1,161,595
7,126,031 2.233.219 521,546 686,756 10,567,552
3 7,571,129 & 2,14 § 486,079  §$1399790  §£1L729,147
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Garfield Charter Township
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Of Governmental Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $1,161,595
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the statement
of actjvities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period. (166.481)
$ 995114

Changes in net position of governmental activities

_ee Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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The Charter Township of Garficld
Statement of Net Position
Enterprise Sewer and Water Fund
December 31, 2014

Assels

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Accounts Receivable

Special Assessments Receivable
Due from Other Activities
Capital Assets:

Land
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Intangible Asset, Net of Amortization

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounls Payable and Accrued Expenses

Due to Other Activities

~ng-term Liabilities, Net of Discounts:

Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Position

Invested in Capital and Intangible Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

see Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Noles to Basic Financial Statements
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$ 10,915,782
611,779
470,999

1,952
366,972

102,927
34,501,293

23,852

46,995,556

704,769
93,992

45,000
480,000

1,323,761

34,103,072
7,472,854
4,095.869

§ 45,671,793



Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services
Special Assessmenis

Total

Operating Expenses

Contractual Services — System Maintenance
Depreciation and Amortization
Capacity Lease
Debt Service:
Interest and Fees
Contractual Payments on Joint Venture

Total
Operating Income

Other Income and Expenses

Interest
Unrealized Gain on Invesiments

Total
Change in Net Position from Operations
Net Position — Beginning of Year

Net Position — End of Year

Tobin & Co.

Garfield Charter Township

Enterprise Sewer and Water Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

_«e Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements
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$ 5,412,040
36,071

5.448.111

407,025
1,168,455
2,380,777

297,351

519262

4,772,870
675,241

—_——a

87,461
175.823

—_— e

263,284

938,525
44,733,270

$_45,671,795



Operaiing Activities

Collection of Charges for Services
Collection of Special Assessments

Collection of Interest and Unrealized Gains or Losscs
Deduct Expenses Using Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Capital Financing Activities

Principal Payments

Tobin & Co.

Garfield Charler Township
Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprisc Sewer and Water Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net Cash Flow (Used By) Capital Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents — End of Year

$ 5,412,040
36,071
263,284

3,690,704

2,020,691

(30,000)

(30,000)
1,990,691

9,536,870

$11,527,561

Reconciliation of Change in Nets Position and Net Cash Flow from Operaling Activities

_nange in Net Position

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings:
Depreciation and Amortization
(Increasc) Decrease in Assets
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Due to Other Funds

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activitics

= Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Stalements
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$ 938,525

1,168,455

27,831
22,705

(70.,449)
(32,712)
—(33.664)

$2.020,691



Assels
Cash and Investments

Total Assels

Liabilitics

Undistributed Taxes and Interest
Escrow Deposits

Total Liabilities

Net Position

Tobin & Co.

Garfield Charter Township
Statement of Fiduciary Nel Position
December 31, 2014

¢ Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statemenls
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$2.742.267

2,742,267

2,179,901
562,366

2,742,267
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Garficld Charter Township
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Garfield Charter Township (the “Township™), conform to generally accepled accounting principles as
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Garfield Charier Township was incorporated as a charter township in 1976 and is located in Grand Traverse County, Michigan.
The Township’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all Township operations. The criteria for including organizations
within the Township’s reporting entity, as st forth in GASB No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity" includes oversight
responsibility, fiscal dependency and whether the financial statements would be misleading if data were not included.

Based on the above criteria, there are no other organizations included in these financial statements.

Sewer and Water System Operations — The Grand Traverse County Board of Public Works operates, maintains and administers the
Township’s sewage disposal and water systems. The original construction and subsequent extlensions were administered by the
County and financed in part through bonds backed by the full faith and credit pledges of the Township.

The County DPW collects all user fees which are remitted to the Township, accounts for direct and allocated operaling expenses
which are billed to and paid by the Township, remits debt payments and maintains capital praject and debt service funds. The
Township’s administration reviews DPW operations on behalf of the Township, establishes special assessment districts, approves of
construction expenditures, collects special assessment levies, which are remitted to the County for debt retirement, and maintains

the special assessment rolls.

hip were cstablished to enable more favorable interest rates and borrowing limits

The arrangements between the County and Towns
ty is acting as an agent for the

and to achieve overall efficiency in operating thesc public services to the communily. The Coun
Township and the Township rctains significant control and responsibility over operations of the sewer and water systems.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

atement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on
ment. For the most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed
Ily are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are

fees and charges for suppor.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the st
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary govern
from these statements. Governmental activities, which norma
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on

s demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
charges 10 customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) prants and contributions that are restricled to meeting the operational or capital requirements ofa
particular function or scgment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as gencral

revenucs.

The statement of activitie:

nds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary fu
mental funds and major individual enterprise

excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual goverr
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The government-wide statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
as are the proprictary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, except for agency funds which do not have a measurement focus.
Revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied, Grants and similar items are recognized as

revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

rrent financial resources measurement focus and the modified

both measurable and available. Revenues are considered lo
liabilities of the current period. For
of the end of the current fiscal

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the cu
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are
be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
this purpose, the government considers revenues 1o be available il they are collected within 60 days
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based grants. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as

period, or within one year for reimbursement —
ms and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures and clai

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, imtergovernmental revenues and jnterest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have becn recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of
special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the
current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and availablc only when cash is received by the

government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,

except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The fire protection fund accounts for the separate voted millage and related operation of the fire department.

The park system debt fund accounts for taxes levied and debt service for the purchase of land, buildings, and equipment for, and

operations of, the Township’s parklands.

The government reports the following major proprietary fund:

The water and sewer fund accounts for the activities of the government's waler distribution system and sewage disposal and

treatment system.
Additionally, the Township reports the following fund types:
Agency funds are used to account for assets held for other governments in an agency capacity, including tax collections.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior 1o December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the

wide and proprictary fund financial statements 1o the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
ect 10 this same limitation. The government has elected

government-
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

sector guidance for their business-lype activities and enterprise funds, subj
not 1o follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmenl-wide financial statements. Exceptions to
r and sewer function and various other functions of the government.

d program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

As a peneral rule
this general rule are charges between the government’s wate!

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs an

Amounts reporied as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2)
operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likcwise, general revenues include all laxes.

es from nonoperaling items. Operaling revenues and expenses generally

result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the sewer and water enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
The enterprise funds also recognize as operating revenues the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cosl of connécling new
customers to the system. Operaling expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revernues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperaling revenues and

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expens

expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources arc available for use, it is the Township’s policy 1o use restricted resources first,

then unrestricled resources as they are needed.
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D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

Deposits and Investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered 1o be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with

original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

anks, credit unions, and savings and loan

State statutes authorize the government to deposit in the accounts of federally insured b
repurchase agreements, banker’

associations, and to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain commercial paper,
acceptances, and mutual funds composed of otherwise legal investments.

Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could

be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

Receivables and Payables

All receivables and payables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the cstimated portion that is

expected 1o be uncollectible.

Activily betwcen funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (e.g., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (e.g.,
the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances belween funds are reported as “due to/from other funds™.
Any residual balances outstanding between the povernmental activities and business-lype activities are reported in the government-

wide financial statements as “intemal balances”,

Prepaids
Certain payments 1o vendors reflect costs applicable 1o future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements

Capital Assets

nd sewer systems, are reported in the applicable governmental
| statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
d useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are

cted. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and waler a
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financia
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than §5,000 and an estimate
recorded at historical cost or cstimated historical cost if purchased or constru
fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not

capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the

construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities, if any, is included as part of the capitalized value of the assels
constructed. No such interest expense was incutred during the current fiscal year. Capital asscts of the primary government are

depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Sewer and Water Sysiems 50 - 75years
Buildings 30 - 60 ycars
Building Improvements 10 - 30 years
Vehicles 3 - 10 years
Office Furniture and

Computer Equipment 3 — 10 years
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Deferred Qutflow/InfNows of Resources

statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet, when applicable, will report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represenis a consumplion of net position/fund
balance that applies to future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
Currently, the Township does not have any items of this type that qualify as deferred outflows of resources.

In addition to assets, the

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the balance sheet, when applicable, will sometime report a separale
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position/fund
balance that applies to future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until them. Currently, the

Township does not have any items of this type that qualify as deferred inflows of resources.

Long-term Obligations

In the povernment-wide financial slatements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, Jong-lerm debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type aclivities, or proprielary
fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
Jife of the bonds using the cffective interest method. Bonds payable arc reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources ¥ ‘hile discounts on debt issuances are reporicd as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equily
Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent cither because they are in nonspendable form or because they are legally or

contractually required to be maintained intact.

nly for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or

Resiricted — amounts that can be spent o
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other

because of constraints that arc externally
governments.

rmal action of the Township Board. The

Commitied — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a fo
mmitments may be established, modified,

Township Board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Township. Co
or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Township Board.

sified as restricted or committed but that are intended 1o be used for

Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be clas:
with unanimous approval of all committed members.

specific purposes. All such assignments can be made only

As of December 31, 2014, fund balances arc composed of the following;

Other Total
General Fire Park Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Committed $ 681,067 § 2,272,149 § 486,079 $ 1,399,790 £ 4,839,085
Unassigned 6,890,062 - - - 6,890,062

§ 7571029 52272049 S 486079  $£1399790  $11729,)47

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricled and unrestricted fund balance is available, the Township
considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned
fund balances are available, the Township considers amounts to have been spent first cut of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as nceded, unless the Township Board has provided otherwise in ils commitment or assignment

actions.

Total Fund Balances
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.

NOTE2- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. The operating budget is adopted by activity
nds. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue funds are adopted
les (GAAP). Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any
1ly adopted, ot as amended by the Township

Comparisons to budget are presented for the
for the General Fund and by activity for the Special Revenue fu.
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting princip
fund must be approved by the Township Board, Budgeted amounts are as origina

Board.

NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Deposits and Investments

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown in the basic financial statements to the Township’s deposits and investments is as

follows:
Carrying
Government-wide Financial Statement Captions: Amount
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,458,968
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement Captions:
Cash and cash equivalents 2.742.267
Total $ 22,201,235
Deposits $ 22,201,085
Cash on hand 150
Total $ 22201,235

Investment and Decposit Risk:

Interesi Rate Risk. State law limits the allowable investments and the maturities of some of the allowable investments as identified
below. The Township’ investment policy does not have specific limits in excess of state law on investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure Lo fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The maturity dates for cach investment are

identified above for investment held at year end.

ment securities, certificates of deposits and bank accounts with qualified

financial institutions, commercial paper with specific maximum maturities and ralings when purchascd, bankers acceptances of
specific financial institutions, qualified mutual funds and qualified external investment pools as identificd below. The Township’s
investment policy does not have specific limits in excess of state law on investment credit. The ratings for each investment are

identified above for investments held at year end.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to specific govern

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township’s deposits may
have a policy for deposit custodial credit risk. The Township
h its primary financial institution. The Agreement fully

0 with a variety of securities backed by the U.S.

as exposed Lo custodial credit risk

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits.

not be returned. State law does not require and the Township docs not
has entered into a Third Party Custodial Agrecment (“Agreement”) wit
collateralized all deposits at the bank which exceed the FDIC limit of $250,00
Govemnment. Of the deposits, $12,219,545 of the Township’s bank balance of $14,766,142 w
because it was uninsured, uncollateralized and had no additional financial backing.
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Custodial Credit Risk — Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Township will not be able to recover the value of its investments or coflateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. Statc law does not require and the Township does not have a policy for investment custodial credit risk. Of the
investments listed above, there is not cuslodial credit risk as these investments are uncategorized as to credil risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. State law limits allowable investments but does not limit concentration of eredit risk as identified
below. The Township’s investment policy does not have specific limits in cxcess of staie law on concentration of credit risk. More
than 5 percent of the Township’s investments are in U.S. Treasury securitics. All investments at year end are reported above.

The Township is authorized by statute to invest surplus funds in the following:

(1) Bonds, securities, other obligations and repurchase agrcements of the United States, or an agency or instrumentality of the

United Siates.

(2) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipls of a qualified financial institution.

two highest classifications established by not less than two

(3) Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the
standard rating scrvices and that matures not more than 270 days afier date of purchase.

(5) Inbankers’ acceptances of United States Banks.

Obligations of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions that, at the time of purchase, are rated as investment

(&)
grade by at least one standard rating service.

Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 with the authority to purchase only investment vehicles
that are legal for direct investment by a public corporation.

M

(8) External investment polls as authorized by Public Act 20 as amended through December 31, 1997.

The Township Board is authorized to designate depositories for Township funds, and to determine thal the funds are invested in
accordance with State of Michigan statutory authority.

The Township’s deposits are in accordance with statutory authority.

Receivables

Receivables in the primary governmenl are as follows:

Business Activities

Government.Activities

Accounts § 611,018 $ 470,999
Taxes Receivable 3,158,413 -
Special Assessments:

Due within onc year 18,954 1,952
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Capital Assets

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated - Land
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Intangible Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total intangible assets

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Business-lype Activities:
Capital asseis not being depreciated - Land
Capital asscts being depreciated:
Sewer and Water Systems
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer and Water Systems

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Intangible Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total intangible assets

Business-lype Activitics Capital Assets, Net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as Tollows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Works
Recreation and Culture

Total depreciation expense —~ povernmental activilies

Tobin & Co.

The Charter Township of Garfield
Noles 1o Financial Stalements

§ 84,206
31,045
92,400

3 207,651

29

December 31, 2014
12/31/13 Additions Deletions 12/31/14
$ 4271072 § - b} - $4271,072
5,383,111 32,868 - 5,415,979
157,186 - - 157,186
436,974 4,200 - 441.174
5,977,271 37,068 - 6,014,339
(2,246,991) (168,114) - (2,415,105)
(137,243) (1,994) - (139,237)
(406.582) (6.498) - (413.080)
(2,790,816) (176.606) (2.967.422)
3,186,455 (139.538) - 3.046.917
330,242 - - 330,242
(75.521) (31.045) - (106.566)
254,721 (31.045) - 223,676
§ 7712248 § (170583) § -  $7.541.665
12/31/13 Additions Deletions 12/31/14
$ 102,927 s - $ - $ 102927
58,151,429 - - 58,151,429
(22.484.832) (1.165,304) - (23.650,136)
35,666,597 (1,165.304) 34,501,293
55,932 - - 55,932
(28.930) (3.150) - (32.080)
27,002 (3.150) - 23.852
$35,796,526 §(1,168454) § __ -  $34,628.072
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Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund receivables and payables as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Due From Due (To)
General §$ 341,224  General § 17,872
Park 17,872  Patk 339,298
Public Improvement 93992  Street Lights 1,926
Knollerest 93,992
3 453,088 $_453.088
Long-term Debt
A summary of bond and contract transactions for the year ended December 31, 2014, as follows:
Governmental Activities
Balance Balance Current
1/01/13 Additions Retirements 12/31/14 Portion
Compensated Absences § 13313 % - $ - $ 13313 b -
Total Governmental Activities h 13313 % - f - 5§ 13313 b -
Business Type Activilies
Balance Balance Current
Bonds Payable: 1/01/13 Additions Retirements 12/31/14 Portion
Water and Sewer 2009 Bonds $_ 555000 § - § (30.000) § 525000 § 45000
$ 555000 S . - 5 (30,000 5525000 £ __45,000

Sewer revenue contracts are supported by revenues of the Water and Sewer Fund. The Township has no general obligation debt that can
be levied on the annual property tax bills.
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Business-lype Activities
$990,267 2009 water and sewer system improvements

projects, due in annual installments of $25,000 to $40,000
through 2029. Interest payable semi-annually at 2.50% $ 525000

$ 525000
For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liguidated by the general fund.

Annual debt service requirements Lo maturily for contracts and notes payable are as follows:

Governmental Aclivities Business-type Activities

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 by - $ - $ 45,000 $§ 21,688
2016 - - 45,000 20,563
2017 . . 50,000 19,375
2018 - - 50,000 18,125
2019 - - 55,000 16,813
2020 - 2029 - - 280,000 83.815
Total b - 8 - § 525000 % 180379

OTHER INFORMATION

Property Taxes

Township property taxes are attached as an enforceable licn on property as of December 1. Taxes are levied December 1 and are due
without penalty on or before February 14. These tax bills include the Township’s own property taxes and taxes billed on behalf of Grand

Traverse County and the school districts within the Township boundaries.

Real property taxes not collected as of March 1 are tumed over to Grand Traverse County for collection, which advances the Township
100% for the delinquent taxes. Collection of delinquent personal property taxes remains the responsibility of the Township Treasurer.

Inventories

Charter Township of Garfield does not maintain a substantial inventory of supplies or materials. Purchases are normally made as
needed, and the items recorded as expenses when purchased.

Pension Plans

Defined Contribution Pension Plan - The Township participates in a defined contribution pension plan for Michigan Township
cmployees under contract with the John Hancock Life Insurance Company to provide benefits al retirement to eligible employees.

Eligible employees arc those who have attained the age of 18 and not more than 75, have been employed for the Township for more than
90 days and are elected officials or full-time employees working 37 hours or more per week.

The Township pays 100% of the required annual contribution, which amounts 1o 10% of annual compensation. Compensation is
determined by the basic annual rate of compensation in effect at the beginning of the plan year. Eligible employees may make voluntary

contributions through payroll withholdings in amounts ranging from one 10 ten percent of compensation.
An employee will become 100% vested in his/her account balance immediately after completion of one year of employment.
Plan provisions and contribution rcquircments arc established and may be amended by the Township Board.

During the year, the Township’s required contributions amounted to $70,073. Covered payroll for the year was $700,730 with total
payroll for all employees of $904,055. The plan was funded at the required contribution amount.

31



Tobin & Co.

The Charter Township of Garfield
Notes 1o Financial Statements
December 31, 2014

Joint Venture

The Township entered into a master sewer agreement effective July 1, 1987 through June 30, 2014 and supplemented July 1, 1993,
August 13, 1998, and March 31, 2003 with the additions of the City of Traverse City, the Townships of Peninsula, East Bay, and Acme
in Grand Traverse County, the Township of ElImwood in Leclanau County and with Grand Traverse County. This master sewer
agreement defines the allocation of costs and establishes certain rights and responsibilities with respect to the Wastewater Treatment
Plant. Grand Traverse County is the owner of the Treatment Plant and the City of Traverse Cily is the owner of all the multi-user
facilitics. Ownership of the Treatment Plant will revert 1o the City of Traverse City when certain bonds issued by Grand Traverse

County are retired.
The City of Traverse City is the exclusive manager of the plant for the benefit of itself and the Townships. As the exclusive manager,
the City of Traverse City has the obligation to fully inform and advise the Townships as to the Treatment Plant’s operations and the

Townships shall have the right to comment on all matters connected with the administration of the plant. Prior to June 30, the City of
Traverse City shall submit a proposed budget for the operations of the Treatment Plant for the year commencing July 1. The Townships

have thirty days in which 1o comment on the proposed budget.

Each of the parties of the agreement is entitled to make use of a portion of the Treatment Plant’s capacity as follows:

Party Capacity Right

City of Traverse City 60.00%
Garfield Township 25.46
East Bay Township 2.78
Elmwood Township 2.73
Acme Township 8.17
Peninsula Township __.86
100%

Fach participant in the joint venture pays an amount sufficient to cover their pro rata share of the treatment plant costs. Each
participant’s pro rata share is delermined by their volume of sewage treated in relation to total sewage treated at the plant, The principal

amount paid in the current year for the Township was $515,684 and the interest was $275,315.

The Township is also liable for a portion of the Treatment Plant’s debt. A portion of the liability is fixed and a pertion is determined on
a biannual basis based upon the amount of the Township’s flows through the Treatment Plant. The Township’s portion of Treatment

Plant debt is estimated as follows:

Year Ended December 31 Principal Interest
2015 § 432820 § 150,825
2016 450,642 133,105
2017 465,918 114,825
2018 486,286 95,781
2019 509,200 75,871
2020-23 1,642,170 100.058

Total

§ 3,987,036 §__670465
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Commitments and Contingencies

The Township is contingently liable in connection with bonds issued to construct and operate a wasic waler trealment scptage plant in
Grand Traverse County. It currently appears that the facility may begin to operaie at a deficit, in which casc the Township and other
guarantors would be required to fund the operating deficit. At the present time, it is not known whether such a deficit will occur, but if
the Township is ultimately required to provide funding, it will be in the form of a loan with repayment provisions.

In addition, in the normal course of operations, the Township becomes a party 1o various claims and lawsuits. In the opinion of the legal
counse] and Township management, the ultimate resolution of such matters will not have a material effect on the financial position of

the Township.

Risk Management

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related 10 torts; theft of, damage 1o, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters, During the audit year the Township addressed these risks through the purchase of
commercial insurance through Municipal Underwriters of Michigan. There was no significant reduction of insurance coverage from
prior years nor have the amounts of any settlements exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Prior Period Adjustments

During the current year, it was determined that certain prior year taxes receivable were not recorded as income in the funds. To correct
this error, the beginning General Fund balance of $5,239,185, Fire Fund balance of $730,749, Street Lighting Fund balance of $5,167,
and Milfoil Fund balance of $284 as originally reported, were increased to $7,126,031, $2,233,219, $16,686, and $8,977, respectively.

Subsequent Events

In preparing the accompanying financizl statements, the Township officials have evaluated, for potential recognilion or disclosure,
significant events or transactions that occurred during the period subsequent to December 31, 2014 and prior to April 15, 2015, the date
these financial statements were available to be issued. No such significant events or transaclions were identified.

PENDING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial reporting for Pensions, effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2014. This Statement generally carries forward the requirements of Statement No. 27 for employer accounting and
financial reporting for defined contribution plans. In this Statement, the definition of defined contribution pensions, as well as the
accounting requirements for such pensions, includes provisions 1o accommodate circumstances in which the timing of payments into
individual accounts does not coincide with the period of employee service to which dcfined contributions pertain (as when a nenvested
employec accumulates credits for which the employer delays payment into the employee’s account until vesling provisions have been
satisficd). The Statement also establishes requirements to address accounting for forfeitures. The Statement also enhances
accountability and transparency through revised note disclosures. The Township is currenily evaluating the impact this standard will

have on the financial statements when adopted during the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2015.
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SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SECTION
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The Charter Township of Garfield Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual Page 1
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Variance
Budpeted Amounts Favorable
Revenues Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
Taxes:
Curtent Taxes $ 2,030,779 § 2,030,779 $ 1,910,066 $ (120,713)
Delinquent Taxcs - - 1,651 1,651
Penaltics and Interest on Taxes 7,500 7,500 9,994 2,494
Swamp Tax 40 40 61 21
Trailer Park Fees 6,100 6,100 7,226 1,126
Licenses and Permits:
Building Permits 150,000 150,000 240,022 90,022
Planning and Zoning Fees 25,000 25,000 26,060 1,060
Maintenance Inspection Fees 1,500 1,500 2,040 540
State Grants:
State Metro 17,561 17,561 16,454 (1,107)
State Shared Revenues 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,263,522 63,522
State Shared Revenues — Liquor Law 20,000 20,000 18,339 (1,661)
Charges for Services:
Tax Collection Fees 22,000 22,000 22,058 58
Yther 17,900 17,900 11,816 (6,084)
rest and Rents:
Interest 15,000 15,000 23,662 8,662
Rent 40,000 48,000 48,351 351
Royalties 194,000 202,000 279,902 77,902
Other:
Reimbursements - - 30,428 30,428
Unrealized Gain on Investments - - 37,658 37.698
Total Revenues 3,747380 3,763.380 3,949,350 185,970
Expenditures
Legislative:
Township Board:
Salaries and Wages — Trustees, Secretary and Receptionist - - 104,819 -
Supplies - - 26,447 -
Legal - - 29,903 -
Audit and Accounting - - 15,794 -
Other Contracted Scrvices - - 3,715 -
Printing and Advertising - - 4,983 -
Mileage, Travel, and Education - - 1,022 -
Dues and Publications - - 6,549 -
Other - - - -
Total 192,157 192,157 193,232 (1.075)
192,157 192,157 193,232 (1.075)

Total Legislative

Notes Lo the Basic Financial Statements are an intcgral part of this statemenl.
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Garfield Charter Township Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actual Page 2
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorablc
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable}
Expenditures (Continued)
Gencral Government:
Township Supervisor and Assessor:
Salaries and Wages - - 154,625 -
Salaries and Wages — Assistants and Secretaries - - 109,470 =
Supplies - - 695 -
Contractual Services - - 17,514 -
Printing and Advertising - - 4,810 -
Mileage and Education - - 4,693 -
Dues and Publications - - 2,720 -
Other - - - -
Total 300,165 300,165 294,527 5,638
Elections:
Salaries and Wages - - 15,011 -
Supplies - - 6,867 -
Postage - - 4,578 -
Mileage and Education - - 60 -
Maintenance and Support - - 4,289 -
Advertising - - 332 -
Total 36,200 36,200 31,137 5.063
Clerk:
Salaries and Wages - - 69,652 -
Salaries and Wages — Deputy and Other - - 45,470 -
Mileage and Education - - 4,778 -
Dues and Publications - - 514 =
Other - - 456 -
Total 126.813 126.813 120,870 5.943
Board of Review:
Salaries and Wages - - 2,300 -
Other - - - -
Total 5,200 5,200 2,300 2,900
Treasurer:
Salarics and Wages - - 69,652 -
Salaries and Wages — Deputy and Other - - 55,399 -
Supplies - - 8,456 -
Legal - - 8,409 -
Printing and Publishing - - 379 -
Mileage and Education - - 2,113 -
Dues and Publications - - 370 -
Other - - 192 -
Total 148,608 148.608 144,970 3,638

‘oles to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Garficld Charter Township Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Aclual Page 3
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures (Continued
General Government (Continued):
Computer Support:
Supplies - - 867 -
Computer Systems - - 1,753 -
Maintenance and Supporl - - 28.129 -
Total 51.000 51,000 30,749 20,251
Township Hall and Grounds:
Wages - - 10,358 -
Supplies - - 3,310 -
Telephone - - 24,276 -
Public Utilities - - 39,999 -
Cleaning - - 14,477 -
Maintenance and Repairs = 3 34,256 -
Total 127,000 127,000 126.676 324
Total General Government 794,986 794,986 751.229 43,757
Public Safety:
‘olice Contract 1.025.365 1.025.365 993,155 32210
Building Inspector:
Salaries and Wages - - 78,294 -
Supplies " - 306 s
Mileage and Education " . 814 -
Dues and Publications " - 100 "
Total 89,960 89.960 79,514 10.446
Planning Commission:
Salaries and Wages - - 10,200 -
Legal - - 6,625 -
Contracted Services - - 1,752 -
Adverlising - - 1,023 -
Education - a 45 -
Dues and Publications = 2 400 "
Total 38300 38.300 20,045 18.255
Township Planner:
Salaries and Wages - - 116,204 -
Supplies - - 382 -
Mileage and Education - - 1,142 -
Dues and Publications = x 740 .
125,050 125.050 118,468 6,582

Total

. Notes 10 the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Expenditures {Continued)
Public Safety (Continued)

Zoning Board of Appeals:
Salaries and Wages
Legal
Advertising
Other

Total

Zoning Administrator:
Salaries and Wages
Supplies
Mileage and Education
Dues and Publications
Total

Total Public Safety

Heath and Welfare:
Community Promolions

slic Works:
Street Lighting

Other:
Township Vehicles
Employee Benefits and Insurance
Total

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues (Expenditures)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers (Qut)

Total

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) and
Other Financing Sources {Uscs)

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Prior Perind Adjustment

Tobin & Co.

The Charter Township of Garficld Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual Page 4
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
g - 1,000 -
- - 248 -
- . 223 -
. - 282 -
11,000 11,000 1,753 9,247
- - 49,737 =
5 = 186 -
= - 60 -
50,042 58,042 49,983 8,059
1,339.717 1.347.717 1,262.918 84.79%
120,500 128,500 123912 4,588
92,000 92.000 82236 9,764
4,300 4,300 3,939 361
462,500 462,500 382,371 80,129
466,800 466,800 386310 80.490
30,000 30,000 4,200 25,800
3,036,160 3,052,160 2.804.037 248,123
711,220 711,220 1,145,313 434.093
- - (700,215) (700.215)
- - (700.215) (700.215)
$._711220 § 711220 445,098 §_(266,12)
5,239,185
1.886.846
$1,571,129

Fund Balance — End of Year

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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